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BYRON ENERGY LIMITED

Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your directors submit herewith their report together with the Financial Report of Byron Energy Limited (“the
consolidated entity” or “Group”), being Byron Energy Limited (“Byron” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries, for the
financial year ended 30 June 2014.

Directors

The names and details of the Company’s directors in office during the financial year and until the date of this report are as

follows:

Douglas G. Battersby
Maynard V. Smith
Prent H. Kallenberger
Charles J. Sands

Paul A. Young

Names, qualifications, experience and special responsibilities:

Douglas G. Battersby
Non-Executive Chairman
Appointed 18th March
2013

Maynard V. Smith
Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer
Appointed 18th March
2013

Doug is a petroleum geologist with over forty years’ technical and managerial experience
in the Australian and international oil and gas industry.

Doug co-founded two ASX listed companies (Eastern Star Gas Limited, which was taken
over by Santos Limited in November 2011, and SAPEX Limited, which was taken over by
Linc Energy Limited in October 2008), and two private oil and gas
exploration/development companies, Darcy Energy Limited, which was sold to I B Daiwa
Corporation in 2005, and Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd where he was Executive
Chairman until Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd merged with Trojan Equity Limited to
create Byron Energy Limited. Between 1990 and 1999 Doug was Technical Director at
Petsec Energy Limited, an ASX listed operator in the shallow waters of the Gulf of Mexico
with production reaching 100 MMcf per day of gas and 9,000 barrels of oil per day in
1997.

He holds a Master of Science degree in Petroleum Geology and Geochemistry from
Melbourne University.

Other current directorships of listed companies
None

Former directorships of listed companies in last three years
None.

Maynard is a geophysicist with over thirty years’ technical and managerial experience in
the oil and gas industry with a particular focus on the Gulf of Mexico.

Maynard co-founded Darcy Energy Limited, sold to I B Daiwa Corporation in 2005, and
Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd where he has been Chief Executive until Byron Energy
(Australia) Pty Ltd merged with Trojan Equity Limited to create Byron Energy Limited.
Prior to that, Maynard was Chief Operating Officer with Petsec Energy Limited (1989-
2000). In the late 1970s and early 1980s Maynard held senior exploration positions with
Tenneco Oil Company, based in Bakersfield, California.

He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Geophysics from California State University at
San Diego.

Other current directorships of listed companies
None.

Former directorships of listed companies in last three years
None.
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Prent H. Kallenberger
Executive Director and
Chief Operating Officer
Appointed 18th March
2013

Charles J. Sands
Non-Executive Director
Appointed 18th March
2013

Paul A. Young
Non-Executive Director
Appointed 18th March
2013

Prent is a geoscientist with over thirty years’ experience in the oil and gas industry with
extensive exploration and development experience in the Gulf of Mexico, having
generated prospects which have led to the drilling of over 125 wells in the Gulf of Mexico
and California. He was Vice President of Exploration with Byron Energy (Australia) Pty
Ltd until Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd merged with Trojan Equity Limited to create
Byron Energy Limited.

Between 2000 and 2006, Prent was Vice President of Exploration with Petsec Energy Inc,
where he was responsible for a team of seven people and generated projects leading to the
drilling of ten successful wells in 12 attempts in the shallow waters of the Gulf of Mexico.
These wells produced 32 Bef and 1.5 MMBDIs of oil. Between 1992 and 1998 Prent was
Geophysical Manager with Petsec Energy Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of Petsec
Energy Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Geology from Boise State
University and Master of Science degree in Geophysics from Colorado School of Mines.

Other current directorships of listed companies
None.

Former directorships of listed companies in last three years
None.

Charles has been a non-executive director of Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd until Byron
Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd merged with Trojan Equity Limited to create Byron Energy
Limited. Charles was also a director of Darcy Energy Limited.

Charles has over thirty years’ of broad based business and management experience in the
USA and is President of A. Santini Storage Company of New Jersey Inc, enabling him to
advise on the general business operating environment and practices in the USA. He holds
a Bachelor of Science degree from Monmouth University.

Mr Sands is currently a member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

Other current directorships of listed companies
None.

Former directorships of listed companies in last three years
None.

Paul is the co-founder and an executive director of Baron Partners Limited, a well-
established corporate advisory business, and has been in merchant banking in Australia for
more than 25 years. He has extensive experience in the provision of corporate advice to a
wide range of listed and unlisted companies including restructurings, capital raisings,
initial public offerings and mergers and acquisitions.

Paul is an Honours Graduate in Economics (University of Cambridge) and has an
Advanced Diploma in Corporate Finance. He is an Associate of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company
Directors.

Mr Young is currently Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee.
Other current directorships of listed companies
- Ambition Group Limited

- Tidewater Investments Limited
Former directorships of listed companies in last three years

- GB Energy Limited (until July 2011)
- Thomas & Coffey Limited (until June 2013)
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Company Secretary
Nick Filipovic
Appointed 18" March 2013

Nick is a qualified accountant (FCPA) with over thirty years® experience in the financial services and natural resources
industries, including oil and gas, where he has held a range of senior financial and commercial management positions.
He was the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd until Byron Energy
{Australia) Pty Ltd merged with Trojan Equity Limited to create Byron Energy Limited.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the consolidated entity during the financial year were oil and gas exploration in the shallow
waters of the Gulf of Mexico (“GOM”), USA.

Consolidated results
The loss for the consolidated entity after income tax was US$7,305,087 (2013: US$3,820,053 loss).

Review of Operations

Corporate review

During the financial year, the Company issued 9,916,847 fully paid ordinary shares by way of a placement at an issue
price of $A0.65 per share raising a total of US$6,022,452 (A$6,445,951).

In addition, 384,100 share options were converted to ordinary shares at A$0.50 per share, raising US$175,278
(A$192,050) in additional equity.

Following completion of the above transactions, the Company’s issued capital on 30 June 2014 comprised:-

Issued Quoted Unquoted Escrowed*
Shares (ASX:BYE) | 138,270,794 118.820,276 19,450,518 19,450,518
Options 36,995,984 Nil 36,995,984 ** 13,687,083

* escrowed for 24 months from official quotation i.e. until 30 May 20135.
**includes escrowed options of 13,687,083.

Financial Review

The Group recorded a net loss of US$7,305,087 for the year ended 30 June 2014, compared to a net loss of US$3,820,053
for the year ended 30 June 2013. The increase is mainly due to a charge of US$5,108,285 (2013 nil) for the impairment of
oil and gas properties. The impairment charge covers ten leases, over six separate projects, relinquished during the year or
subsequent to balance date due to lease expiry, imminent expiry or the Group deciding, following a thorough review of
seismic, that the lease was no longer considered prospective.

At 30 June 2014, the consolidated entity had total assets of US$28,169,660 (2013: US$23,722,321) and total liabilities of
US$6,176,980 (2013: US$583,995) resulting in net assets of US$21,992,680 (2013: US$23,138,326).

At 30 June 2014, the consolidated entity held cash and cash equivalents of US$7,232,585 (2013: US$14,989,226) of
which US$6,369,503 (2013: US$12,740,893) were denominated in United States dollars and US$863,082 (2013:
US$2,248,333) were denominated in Australian dollars. The consolidated entity had borrowings, in the form of unsecured
loans from the directors, convertible to equity, of US$942,000 as at 30 June 2014 (2013: nil).

Exploration expenditure for the year ended 30 June 2014 was US$17,510,685, US$13,985,177 above the comparable
period last year. The 2014 year includes the cost of drilling the Byron Energy SM 6 #1 well and the Byron Energy SM 6
#1 BPO1 by pass well, as a result of mechanical problems with the original well bore, as well as seismic acquisition /
processing and acquisition of new GOM leases.
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Summary of shares and options on issue

At 30 June 2014, the Company had 138,270,794 ordinary shares and 36,995,684 options. Details of the options are as

follows:

Number of shares
Issuing entity under option Class of shares Exercise price Expiry date
Byron Energy Limited 36,995,984 Ordinary A$0.50 31 December 2016

During the financial year, 10,300,947 shares were issued, of which 9,916,847 was through a placement in June 2014 at
$A0.65 per share and 384,100 shares as a result of the exercise of options. Subsequent to 30 June 2014, through to the
date of this report, no options had been exercised. In July 2014, the Company placed a further 2,876,923 ordinary shares
at A$0.65 per share.

Shareholdings of directors and other key management personnel

The interests of each director and other key management personnel, directly and indirectly, in the shares and options of
Byron Energy Limited at the date of this report are as follows:

Director / Key Options over ordinary Exercise

Management Personnel Ordinary shares shares price Expiry date
D. G. Battersby 18,892,971 6,397,876 $A0.50 31 December 2016
M. S. Smith 15,300,688 5,956,111 $A0.50 31 December 2016
P. H. Kallenberger 1,250,000 3,450,000 $A0.50 31 December 2016
C. J. Sands 9,397,336 1,953,574 $A0.50 31 December 2016
P. A. Young 1,070,000 171,200 $A0.50 31 December 2016
N Filipovic 524,788 3,037,000 $A0.50 31 December 2016

During the financial year, no options or shares were granted to directors or other key management personnel of the
Company.

Significant changes in the state of affairs

During the financial year, significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity were as follows:-

®

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vD)

(vii)

drilling of Byron Energy SM 6 #1 well followed by two related bypass wells, Byron Energy SM 6 #1 BP01 and
Byron Energy SM 6 #1 BP02, as a result of mechanical problems;

acquisition of 3 new leases in the shallow waters of the Gulf of Mexico, offshore Louisiana, comprising Grand Isle
blocks 63/72/73;

relinquishment or expiry of 9 leases, comprising West Cameron blocks 475/490/491, West Cameron blocks
469/472/473, West Delta block 49, Ship Shoal block 180 and Vermillion block 200;

execution of an agreement with FairfieldNodal to license 3D seismic data over two of Byron’s salt dome projects
with one of the projects, the Eugene Island blocks 190/191/210, to be processed through Anisotropic Reverse
Time Migration (“ARTM”);

execution of an agreement with WesternGeco for geoscience services whereby the Eugene Island 63/76 Salt Dome
Project would undergo ARTM reprocessing on 3D data already licensed by the Company and the South Marsh
Island 70/71 Salt Dome Project would be subjected to full waveform inversion techniques on 3D ARTM data;

completion of a share placement for the issue of 9,916,847 fully paid ordinary shares at an issue price of $A0.65
per share raising a total of US$6,022,452 (A$6,445,951); and

execution of an unsecured convertible loan facility of A$2,000,000 (US$1,884,000) with three of the directors of
the Company, half of which was drawn down in June 2014; the loan can be converted to equity at the option of the
lenders or the Company at A$0.65 per ordinary share, subject to prior approval at a meeting of shareholders.

Apart from those changes above, there were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity
during the financial year.
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Significant events after the balance date

There has been no matter or circumstance since 30 June 2014 which has significantly affected or may significantly affect
the operations of the consolidated entity, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in
subsequent financial years other than those described below:-

(i)  the drilling of Byron Energy SM 6 #1 well and the two related bypass wells, Byron Energy SM 6 #1 BP0l and
Byron Energy SM 6 #1 BP02 was completed in July 2014 with the rig released on 31 July 2014;

(i)  electric logs run in the Byron Energy SM 6 #1 BP02 indicated two separate net hydrocarbon pay zones in the F
Sands;

(iii)  due to serious problems with the drilling rig’s top drive, drilling operations of the Byron Energy SM 6 #1 BP02
bypass well were suspended, in late July 2014, leaving the well in a condition that allows completion in the F
Sands at a future date;

(iv)  completion of a share placement for the issue of 2,876,923 fully paid ordinary shares at an issue price of $A0.65
per share raising a total of A$1,870,000;

(v)  execution of an unsecured loan facility with four of the Company’s directors and several others, equivalent to
US$2,544,000 (comprising A$1,400,000 and US$1,225,000) repayable in cash by 1 July 2015;

(vi) atan extraordinary general meeting of shareholders held on 8 September 2014, the shareholders approved:

e the conversion of $A2.0 million convertible loan from three directors to the Company, half of which was
drawn-down during the financial year and the balance subsequent to year end, into 3,076,923 ordinary shares
in the Company at A$0.65 per share, the same price as the issue price under the share placement completed on
26 June 2014,

e the issue of 154,000 fully paid ordinary shares in the Company, at an issue price of A$0.65 per share to
Clapsy Pty Ltd, a company controlled by Mr Paul Young, a director of the Company;

e the placement of (a) 9,916,847 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares at A$0.65 per shares completed on 26 June 2014,
and (b) the placement of 2,876,923 fully paid ordinary shares at A$0.65 per share, completed on 11 July
2014,

o the issue, under Listing Rule 7.1, of up to 15,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares within 3 months of the date of
approval, without using up any of the 15% capacity; and

(vii) released an independent reserves and prospective resources estimate, as at 30 June 2014, prepared by Collarini and
Associates in accordance with the reporting requirements of the Petroleum Resources Management System (SPE-
PRMS) as required by ASX Listing Rule 5 — Additional Reporting on Mining and Oil & Gas Production and
Exploration Activities.

Future developments

It is expected that the consolidated entity will continue its oil and gas exploration and development activities in the
shallow waters of the Gulf of Mexico, USA.

Further information regarding likely developments are not included in this report. As the Company is listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange (“ASX?”), it is subject to the continuous disclosure requirements of the ASX Listing Rules
which require immediate disclosure to the market of information that is likely to have a material effect on the price or
value of Byron Energy Limited’s securities.

Dividends

No dividends in respect of the current financial year have been paid, declared or recommended for payment (2013: nil).

Environmental regulation

The consolidated entity’s operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulation under a law of the
Commonwealth or of any State or Territory of Australia. The consolidated entity’s oil and gas exploration activities are
subject to significant environmental regulation under United States of America Federal and State legislation.

The Directors are not aware of any breach of environmental compliance requirements relating to the consolidated entity’s
activities during the year.

Non-audit services

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu did not provide non-audit services to the Company during the financial year.
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Auditor independence declaration

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration under s.307C of the Corporation Act 2001 in relation to the audit of the
full year is included in this report.

Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors

During the financial year the Company paid an insurance premium in respect of Directors’ and Officers’ liability for the
current directors and officers including the company secretary. Under the terms of the policy the premium amount,
coverage and other terms of the policy have been agreed to be confidential and not to be disclosed.

The Company has not otherwise, during or since the financial year, except to the extent permitted by law, indemnified or
agreed to indemnify an officer or auditor of the Company or of any related body corporate against a liability incurred as
such an officer or auditor.

Directors’ meetings

The charter for the Audit and Risk Management Committee was adopted on 12 July 2007 and most recently amended on
25 June 2014. The current members of the committee consist of Paul Young (Chairman) and Charles Sands.

The number of directors’ meetings held during the year was nine Board meetings and five Audit and Risk Management
Committee meetings. The numbers of meetings attended by each director were as follows:

Board of directors Audit and Risk Management Committee
Directors Entitled to attend Attended Entitled to attend Attended
Douglas G. Battersby 9 9 - -
Maynard V. Smith 9 9 - =
Prent H. Kallenberger 9 9 - -
Charles J. Sands 9 9 5 5
Paul A. Young 9 8 5 S

REMUNERATION REPORT — AUDITED

This remuneration report, which forms part of the directors’ report, sets out information about the remuneration of the
Group’s directors and other key management personnel for the financial year ended 30 June 2014. The prescribed details
for each person covered by this report are detailed below.

Details of directors and other key management personnel

Directors and other key management personnel of the Company during and since the end of the financial year are as
follows

Directors

Douglas G. Battersby
Maynard V. Smith
Prent H. Kallenberger
Charles J. Sands

Paul A. Young

Page 7



BYRON ENERGY LIMITED
Directors’ Report

REMUNERATION REPORT —~ AUDITED (CONTINUED)

Key management personnel

Nick Filipovic — Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

The remuneration report is set out below under the following main headings:-

A. Principles and agreements, and

B. Remuneration of directors and other key management personnel

A. Principles and agreements

Remuneration levels are set to attract and retain appropriately qualified and experienced directors and executives. The
board is responsible for remuneration policies and practices. The board may seek independent advice on remuneration

policies and practices, including compensation packages and terms of employment.

The directors’ and key management personnel remuneration levels are not directly dependent upon the Company or
consolidated entity’s performance or any other performance conditions.

Directors’ remuneration is inclusive of committee fees.

Additional information

The Corporations Act requires disclosure of the Company’s remuneration policy to contain a discussion of the
Company’s earnings and performance and the effect of the Company’s performance on shareholder wealth in the
reporting period and the four previous financial years. The table below provides a five year financial summary.

30 June 2010 30 June 2011 30 June 2012 30 June 2013 30 June 2014
US$ Uss$ US$ US$ US$

Revenue 4,495,957 1,445,436 1,399,158 231,926 -

Net profit & (loss) before tax (4,046,924)  (5,102,644)  (10,604,840)  (3,820,053)  (7,305,087)

Net profit & (loss) after tax (4,185,752)  (5,106,898)  (10,604,840)  (3,820,053) (7,305,087
Share price at start of year N/A N/A N/A N/A $A0.405
Share price at end of year N/A N/A N/A $A0.405 $A0.70
Basic earnings per share* N/A N/A (US$0.13) (US$0.035) (US$0.057)
Diluted earnings per share* N/A N/A (US$0.13) (US$0.035) (US$0.057)

*Only the 2012 year has been included for comparative purposes and adjusted to reflect the 2013 acquisition, where 2.5 Byron Energy Limited shares
was issued for every 1 Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd share to Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd shareholders and 2.5 options over Byron Energy
Limited shares were issued for every 1 option over Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd shares at the date of acquisition.

(D) Non-executive directors
The ASX Listing Rules provide that the aggregate remuneration of non-executive directors shall be determined from time
to time by a general meeting of shareholders. The latest determination was at the extraordinary general meeting held on

22 April 2013 when shareholders approved an aggregate remuneration of A$300,000 per annum.

The amount of aggregate remuneration sought to be approved by shareholders and the fee structure is reviewed annually.
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The Chairman, Douglas Battersby, is paid an annual non-executive director’s fee of A$80,000, paid pro-rata on a
quarterly basis, as well as costs relating to performance of duties as a director.

Non-executive directors, Charles Sands and Paul Young, are paid an annual non-executive director’s fee of A$40,000
each, paid pro-rata on a quarterly basis, as well as costs relating to performance of duties as a director.

There are no termination or retirement benefits for non-executive directors (other than statutory superannuation where
applicable).

(ii)  Executive directors and key management personnel

Remuneration levels of executive directors and key management personnel are set to attract and retain appropriately
qualified and experienced directors and executives. This involves assessing the appropriateness of the nature and amount
of remuneration on a periodic basis by reference to market conditions, length of service and particular experience of the
individual concerned.

Remuneration packages may include a mix of fixed and variable remuneration, short and long term performance based
incentives. The remuneration packages are reviewed annually by the board as required.

Remuneration and other terms of employment of the Chief Executive Officer (Maynard Smith), Executive Director and
Chief Operating Officer (Prent Kallenberger) and the CFO/Company Secretary (Nick Filipovic) are detailed below.

Fixed remuneration for executive directors and key management personnel

Maynard Smith

The Company has entered into a service agreement with Maynard Smith via a Company of which Mr Smith is a director.
Mr Smith’s contract is for a period of two years at an annual rate of A$240,000 plus reasonable and justifiable business
expenses commencing on 24 May 2013 with an automatic extension for a further one year unless the parties elect to
terminate the contract at the end of two years. The contract is further terminable by either party “for cause” immediately
on notice and otherwise “without cause” on 120 days’ notice.

Prent Kallenberger

The Company has entered into a service agreement with Prent Kallenberger. Mr Kallenberger’s contract is for a period of
two years, at annual rate of US$350,000 plus medical insurance and reasonable and justifiable business expenses
commencing on 24 May 2013 with an automatic extension for a further one year unless the parties elect to terminate the
contract at the end of two years. The contract is further terminable by the Company “for cause” immediately on notice
and otherwise “without cause” on 90 days’ notice.

Nick Filipovic

The Company has entered into a formal letter agreement with Nick Filipovic. Under Mr Filipovic’s letter of engagement,
he is entitled to a gross salary of A$300,00 per annum plus superannuation at the statutory rate. Byron may terminate Mr
Filipovic’s employment at any time by giving 90 days’ notice or in case of serious misconduct employment may be
terminated without notice. Should Mr Filipovic resign from Byron he will need to give 90 days’ notice.

B. Remuneration of directors and key management personnel

Options

No share options were issued to directors and other key management personnel during the year (2013: 2,050,000 options
as detailed below). No options lapsed, nor were any exercised during the financial year. There are no Employee Share
Option plans in place.

At the end of the financial year, the following share-based payment arrangements were in existence:

Fair value at

Grantee Number Grant date Expiry date Exercise Price grant date  Vesting date
C J Sands 450,000 24 May 2013 31 Dec 2016 A$0.50 A$0.0846 24 May 2013
P Kallenberger 1,000,000 24 May 2013 31 Dec 2016 A$0.50 A$0.0846 24 May 2013
N. Filipovic 600,000 24 May 2013 31 Dec 2016 A$0.50 A$0.0846 24 May 2013

These options are transferrable and not quoted. They may be exercised at any time after vesting date.
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2014

Directors

D. G. Battersby
M. S. Smith

P. H. Kallenberger
C. J. Sands

P. A. Young

Key management personnel

N Filipovic*

Post Share-

employment based

Short term employee benefits benefits payments

Short
Salaries  term cash Other Service Superannuat-

& fees  incentive  Benefits Agreements ion Options Total
USS$ US$ US$ USS$ USS$ USS$ USS$
- - - 73,496 - - 73,496
- - - 220,488 - - 220,488
350,000 - 19,505 - - - 369,505
36,748 - - - - - 36,748
36,748 - - - 3,399 B 40,147
275,610 - - - 25,494 - 301,104
699,106 - 19,505 293,984 28,893 - 1,041,488

*The expected increase in the cost of accumulated annual leave and long service leave during the reporting period as a
result of the charge in the unused entitlements is US$14,134 (2013: US$41,374) for N Filipovic.

2013

Directors

D. G. Battersby - - - 111,474 - - 111,474

M. S. Smith - - - 246,504 - - 246,504

P. H. Kallenberger 350,000 - 18,970 - - 86,856 455,826

C.J. Sands 16,819 - - - - 39,085 55,904

P. A. Young 11,819 - - - 1,063 - 12,882

Key management personnel

N Filipovic* 308,129 - - - 27,732 52,114 387,975
686,767 - 18,970 357,978 28,795 178,055 1,270,565

Bonuses

No bonuses were granted during the financial year ended 30 June 2014 (2013: nil).

Other transactions with key management personnel of the Group
Veruse Pty Ltd, a company controlled by Mr Douglas Battersby, a director of the Company has provided an unsecured
convertible loan to the Company at a fixed interest rate of 7.5% per annum. The loan can be converted to equity at either
party’s option at A$0.65 per ordinary share, subject to prior approval by shareholders. Interest accrued and payable on
this loan for the year ended 30 June 2014 was US$2,323. The principal loan balance outstanding at 30 June 2014 was

US$942,000 (2013: nil).

Additional Information - Key Management personnel equity and share option holdings
The interests of each director and other key management personnel, directly and indirectly, in the shares and options of
Byron Energy Limited are as follows:

Ordinary Shares

Director / Key

Management Personnel

D. G. Battersby
M. S. Smith

P. H. Kallenberger
C. J. Sands

P. A. Young

N Filipovic

Granted as
1st July 2013  compensation
Number Number
18,892,971 -
15,350,688 -
1,250,000 -
17,070,790 -
1,070,000 -
1,161,250 -

Balance at

Received

on exercise of  Disposals/ Balance at
options Other 30 June 2014
Number Number Number

- - 18,892,971

- (50,000) 15,300,688

- - 1,250,000

- (7,673,454) 9,397,336

- - 1,070,000

- (636,462) 524,788

During the financial year, no shares were granted to directors or other key management personnel of the Company.
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REMUNERATION REPORT — AUDITED (CONTINUED)

Additional Information - Key Management personnel equity and share option holdings (continued)

Share options over ordinary shares

Director / Key Balance at Granted as Exercise of  Disposals/ Balance as
Management Personnel 1st July 2013  compensation options Other 30 June 2014

Number Number Number Number Number
D. G. Battersby 6,397,876 - - - 6,397,876
M. S. Smith 5,956,111 - - - 5,956,111
P. H. Kallenberger 3,450,000 - - - 3,450,000
C. J. Sands 3,181,327 - - (1,227,753) 1,953,574
P. A. Young 171,200 - - - 171,200
N Filipovic 3,037,000 - - - 3,037,000

During the financial year, no options were granted to directors or other key management personnel of the Company.

This Directors’ Report is signed in accordance with a resolution of directors made pursuant to 5.298(2) of the
Corporations Act 2001.

On behalf of the directors

. G. Battersby
Chairman

26 September 2014
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- Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
e OItte ABN 74 490 121 060

550 Bourke Street
Melboumne VIC 3000
GPO Box 78
Melboume VIC 3001 Australia
DX 111
Tel: +61 (0) 3 9671 7000
Fax: +61 (0) 39671 7001
www.deloitte.com.au

The Board of Directors
Byron Energy Limited
Level 4, 480 Collins Street
Melbourne VIC 3000

Byron Energy Limited

In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, I am pleased to provide the following declaration
of independence to the directors of Byron Energy Limited.

As lead audit partner for the audit of the financial statements of Byron Energy Limited for the financial year
ended 30 June 2014, I declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of:
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BYRON ENERGY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note

Oil and gas revenue
Cost of sales 2

Gross loss

Corporate and administration costs

Loss on divestment of oil and gas properties

Impairment expense

Share based payments

Depreciation / amortisation of property, plant & equipment
Other expenses

Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) 3

Financial income 4
Financial expense 4

Loss before tax

Income tax expense 5

Loss for the year from continuing operations

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Items that may subsequently be reclassified to profit and loss
Exchange differences on translating the parent entity group

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Earnings per share
Basic (cents per share) 6

Diluted (cents per share) 6

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated
2014 2013
USS US$
i 231,926
- (317,879)
- (85,953)
(1,507,630) (1,249,212)
- (258,377)
(5,108,285) -
- (1,019,510)
(21,369) (22,331)
(704,663) (1,179,267)
(7,341,947) (3,814,650)
47,425 27,756
(10,565) (33,159)
(7,305,087) (3,820,053)
(7,305,087) (3,820,053)
4,877 (294,144)
(7,300,210) (4,114,197)
6.7 (3.5)
6.7 (3.5)



BYRON ENERGY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 2014

Consolidated
Note 2014 2013
USS US$
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 20(b) 7,232,585 14,989,226
Trade and other receivables 7 14,388 366,862
Other 8 341,212 201,310
Total current assets 7,588,185 15,557,398
Non-current assets
Other 8 8,191 15,966
Exploration and evaluation assets 9 20,500,370 8,097,970
Property, plant and equipment 10 70,206 40,855
Other intangible assets 11 2,708 10,132
Total non-current assets 20,581,475 8,164,923
Total assets 28,169,660 23,722,321
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 12 5,071,267 443,963
Provisions 13 123,623 108,515
Borrowings 14 942,000 -
Total current liabilities 6,136,890 552,478
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 13 40,090 31,517
Total non-current liabilities 40,090 31,517
Total liabilities 6,176,980 583,995
Net assets 21,992,680 23,138,326
Equity
Issued capital 15 56,124,868 49,970,304
Foreign currency translation reserve 16 (146,097) (150,974)
Share option reserve 16 2,104,108 2,104,108
Accumulated losses (36,090,199) (28,785,112)
Total equity 21,992,680 23,138,326

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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BYRON ENERGY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FINANCIAL

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Consolidated entity
Balance at 1 July 2012

Loss for the year

Exchange differences arising on
translation of the parent entity

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Value of the consideration transferred
to existing shareholders in Byron
Energy Limited upon reverse asset
acquisition transaction

The issue of 20,577,375 shares under
a prospectus for the Placement Offer

The issue of 15,577,374 shares under
a prospectus for the Entitlement Offer

Equity raising and transaction costs

Recognition of share-based payments
for the issue of 2,600,000 options
under a prospectus to directors,
executives and consultants

Balance at 30 June 2013

Balance at 1 July 2013

Loss for the year

Exchange differences arising on
translation of the parent entity

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Shares issued upon the exercise of
shares options at $A0.50 per share
option

The issue of 9,916,847 shares under a
placement at $A0.65 per share

Equity raising costs

Balance at 30 June 2014

Ordinary Share Foreign

share option currency Accumulated Total
capital reserve translation losses

reserve
US$S USS$ USS$ USS USS
33,855,590 1,878,283 143,170  (24,965,059) 10,911,984
. - - (3,820,053)  (3,820,053)
- - (294,144) - (294,144)
- - (294,144) (3,820,053) (4,114,197)
3,017,649 - - - 3,017,649
7,972,498 - - - 7,972,498
6,035,298 - - - 6,035,298
(910,731) - - - (910,731)
- 225,825 - - 225,825
49,970,304 2,104,108 (150,974)  (28,785,112) 23,138,326
49,970,304 2,104,108 (150,974)  (28,785,112) 23,138,326
- - - (7,305,087) (7,305,087)
- - 4,877 - 4,877
- - 4,877 (7,305,087)  (7,300,210)
175,278 - - - 175,278
6,022,452 - - - 6,022,452
(43,166) - - - (43,166)
56,124,868 2,104,108 (146,097)  (36,090,199) 21,992,680

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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BYRON ENERGY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest paid

Interest received

Net cash flows used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for exploration and evaluation

Proceeds from the divestment of oil and gas properties
Payments for intangible assets

Payments for property, plant and equipment

Net cash flows generated by/(used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issues of ordinary shares
Payment of equity raising and transaction costs
Proceeds from borrowings from related parties
Net cash acquired on reverse asset acquisition
Repayment of borrowings to related parties

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held
in foreign currencies

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Consolidated
Note 2014 2013
USS USS
< 434,734
(1,958,017) (2,807,307)
- (26,706)
47,425 27,756
20(a) (1,910,592) (2,371,523)
(12,891,126) (3,049,694)
- 4,087,464
(238) 475)
(42,965) (9,589)
(12,934,329) 1,027,706
6,197,730 14,007,796
(43,166) (910,731)
933,700 850,350
19 - 1,953,736
- (856,803)
7,088,264 15,044,348
(7,756,657) 13,700,531
14,989,226 1,600,851
16 (312,156)
20(b) 7,232,585 14,989,226

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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BYRON ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note Contents

1. Summary of significant accounting policies
2. Cost of sales

3. Loss for the year

4. Financial income and expenses

5. Income Tax

6. Earnings per share

7. Trade and other receivables

8. Other assets

9. Exploration and evaluation costs

10.  Property, plant and equipment

11.  Other intangible assets

12.  Trade and other payables

13.  Provisions

14.  Borrowings

15.  Issued capital

16.  Reserves

17.  Franking credits

18.  Expenditure commitments

19.  Reverse asset acquisition

20.  Cash flow reconciliation

21.  Controlled entities

22.  Foreign currency translation

23.  Contingent liabilities and contingent asset
24.  Share-based payments

25.  Employee benefits and superannuation commitments
26.  Auditors’ remuneration

27.  Key Management personnel compensation
28.  Related party transactions

29.  Financial instruments

30.  Segment information

31.  Parent entity information

32.  Subsequent events
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BYRON ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standards and Interpretations, and comply with other requirements of the law.

The financial statements comprise of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. For the purposes of preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the Company is a for-profit entity.

Accounting Standards include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (‘A-IFRS’).
Compliance with A-IFRS ensures that the financial statements and notes of the Group comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’).

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 26th September 2014.

The following significant policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements:

Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards

The Group has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board (“AASB”) that are relevant to their operations and effective for the current financial year.

New and revised Standards and amendments thereof and Interpretations effective for the current financial year that are
relevant to the Group include:

Standard/Interpretation

1. AASB 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements® and AASB 2011-7 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting

Standards arising from the consolidation and Joint Arrangements standards’ 2011-7

2. AASB 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’ and AASB 2011- 7 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from the consolidation and Joint Arrangements standards’

3. AASB 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ and AASB 2011-7 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from the consolidation and Joint Arrangements standards’

4. AASB 127 ‘Separate Financial Statements’ (2011) and AASB 2011-7 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from the consolidation and Joint Arrangements standards’

5. AASB 128 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ (2011) and AASB 2011-7 ‘Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from the consolidation and Joint Arrangements standards’

6. AASB 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ and AASB 2011-8 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from AASB 13’

7. AASB 2011-4 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards to Remove Individual Key Management
Personnel Disclosure Requirements’

8. AASB 2012-5 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual Improvements 2009-2011
Cycle’

9. AASB 2012-10 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Transition Guidance and Other
Amendments’

10. AASB 119 ‘Employee Benefits (2011) and AASB 2011-10 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
arising from AASB 119 (2011)’

The adoption of all new and revised Standards and Interpretations has not resulted in any changes to the Group’s
accounting policies and has no effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior financial years.
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BYRON ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Standards and Interpretations issued not yet effective — AASB Interpretations

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the Standards and Interpretations listed below were in issue but not
yet effective.

Standard/Interpretation

Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after

Expected to be
initially applied in the
financial year ending

AASB 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and relevant amending standards* 1 January 2018 30 June 2019
AASB 1031 ‘Materiality’ (2013) 1 January 2014 30 June 2015
AASB 2012-3 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — 1 January 2014 30 June 2015
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’
AASB 2013-3 ‘Amendments to AASB 136 — Recoverable Amount 1 January 2014 30 June 2015
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets’
AASB 2013-9 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — 1 January 2014 30 June 2015
Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments’
AASB 2014-1 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards’ 1 January 2014 30 June 2015
- Part A: ‘Annual Improvements 2010-2012 and 20112013 Cycles’
- Part C: ‘Materiality’
AASB 2014-1 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards’ 1 January 2015 30 June 2016

Part E ‘Financial Instruments’

* The AASB has issued the following versions of AASB 9 and the relevant amending standards:

(M
(if)

(i)

(iv)

AASB 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (December 2009), AASB 2009-11 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9,
AASB 2012-6 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures’

AASB 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (December 2010), AASB 2010-7 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
(December 2010)°, AASB 2012-6 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition
Disclosure’

In December 2013 the AASB issued AASB 2013-9 ‘Amendment to Australian Accounting Standards —Conceptual Framework, Materiality and
Financial Instruments’, Part C — Financial Instruments. This amending standard has amended the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 to 1
January 2017. For annual reporting periods beginning before 1 January 2017, an entity may early adopt cither AASB 9 (December 2009) or
AASB 9 (December 2010) and the relevant amending standards.

In June 2014 the AASB issued AASB 2014-1 ‘Amendment to Australian Accounting Standards’, Part E — Financial Instruments. This
amending standard has amended the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 to 1 January 2018. For annual reporting periods beginning before
1 January 2018, an entity may early adopt either AASB 9 (December 2009) or AASB 9 (December 2010) and the relevant amending
standards

Standards and Interpretations issued not yet effective — IASB and IFRIC Interpretations

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the following IASB Standards and IFRIC Interpretations listed
below were also in issue but not yet effective, although Australian equivalent Standards and Interpretations have not yet
been issued.

Standard/Interpretation

Expected to be initially
applied in the financial
year ending

30 June 2017

Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after

1 January 2016

AASB 2014-3 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

AASB 2014-4 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’

Narrow-scope amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures (2011)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
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BYRON ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Standards and Interpretations issued not yet effective — IASB and IFRIC Interpretations (continued)

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations will have no material financial impact on
the financial statements of the Group.

These Standards and Interpretations will be first applied in the financial report of the Group that relates to the annual
reporting period beginning after the effective date of each pronouncement.

Basis of preparation

The financial report has been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for certain non-current assets and financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical
cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
All amounts are presented in United States of America dollars, unless otherwise noted.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expense. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods effected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements are described in Notes 1
(b) Exploration and evaluation expenditure and 1 (¢) Impairment.

Going Concern
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a going concern, which contemplates the continuity of
normal business activities and the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the consolidated entity incurred a loss after tax of US$ 7.3m (2013: US$ 3.8m),
including the write-off of exploration and evaluation assets of US$ 5.1m, had negative cash flows from operating
activities of US$ 1.9m (2013: US$ 2.4m) and at 30 June 2014 had net current assets of US$ 2.4m excluding unsecured
convertible loans of US$ 0.9m which were converted to equity subsequent to year end. At year end the consolidated
entity reported net assets of US$ 22.0m (2013: US$ 23.1m).

The consolidated entity currently does not have any production income and is therefore reliant on:-

@) raising additional equity capital or debt funding

(i)  receiving the proceeds from either the full or partial sale of its oil and gas leases
(iii)  initiating farm-out arrangements of its oil and gas leases; or

(iv)  acombination of the above

where existing cash reserves are insufficient to fund the consolidated entity’s forecast exploration and development
plan and corporate operating costs.

Additionally at 30 June 2014 the consolidated entity has recognised US$ 4.5m in relation to expenses pertaining to the
drilling of Byron Energy SM 6 #1 and two related bypass wells located in the South Marsh Island Block 6 (“SM 6”).
Subsequent to year end Byron Energy Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of Byron Energy Limited and operator of the SM
6 block, initiated legal proceedings against two contractors who provided services in relation to the drilling of the SMI6
wells and is withholding payment of amounts owed to the two contractors of approximately US$ 4.1m. The total
amount of the damages claimed is still being quantified but the quantum is expected to significantly exceed the amounts
invoiced by the suppliers.
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BYRON ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Going Concern (continued)

Since the end of the financial year, the directors have taken a number of steps to ensure the Company and the
consolidated entity can continue to fund their operations and further explore and develop the consolidated entity’s oil
and gas properties. These steps comprise:-

. completed a share placement on 11 July 2014 for the issue of 2,876,923 fully paid ordinary shares at
an issue price of $A0.65 per share raising a total of A$1,870,000;

. executed an unsecured loan facility bearing interest at 10% pa, in late July 2014, with four of the
Company’s directors and several other shareholders, equivalent to US$2,544,000 (comprising
A$1,400,000 and US$1,225,000) repayable in cash on 1 July 2015;

. held an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders on 8 September 2014, where the shareholders:-

(a) approved the conversion of $A2.0 m convertible loan (half of which was drawn down at year
end and the balance subsequent to year end) from three directors to equity at A$0.65 per share;

(b) approved the issue of 154,000 fully paid ordinary shares in the Company at an issue price of
A$0.65 per share to Clapsy Pty Ltd ( a company controlled by Mr Paul Young );

(©) ratified the issue and allotment of 9,916,847 shares issued on 26 June 2014 and 2,876,923
shares issued on 11 July 2014, allowing the Company to retain the flexibility to issue up to
15% of its issued capital, if required, in the next twelve months without the need to obtain
prior shareholder approval; and

(d) approved the ability to issue, under Listing Rule 7.1, up to 15,000,000 fully paid ordinary
shares within 3 months of the date of approval, without using up any of the 15% capacity.

While the Company has a demonstrable track record of raising funds which historically has been strongly supported by
its directors and major shareholders the ability of the Company and the consolidated entity to continue as going
concerns for the coming year is dependent on one or more of the following:-

(i) the Company’s ability to raise additional equity capital;

(i) the Company’s ability to secure additional debt funding if required;

(iii) the Company’s ability to realise its interests in oil and gas leases or secure farm-out
arrangements for the consolidated entity’s oil and gas leases if required;

(iv) the successful resolution of the legal proceedings in relation to the disputed amounts with
certain suppliers involved with the drilling of the SMI 6 wells; and

W) the successful refinance or extension of the current loan facility of $US 2.5m that expires on 1
July 2015.

Cash flow forecasts prepared by management demonstrate that the Company and the consolidated entity have sufficient
funds to meet their commitments over the next twelve months based on the above factors and for that reason the
financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company and the consolidated entity are going concerns.

In the event that the Company and the Consolidated Entity are unsuccessful in the matters set out above, there is
material uncertainty whether the Company and the Consolidated entity will continue as going concerns and therefore
whether they will realise their assets and discharge their liabilities in the normal course of business and at the amounts
stated in the financial report.

This financial report does not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset

amounts or to the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company and the
Consolidated Entity not continue as going concerns.
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BYRON ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the financial

report:
(@)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (referred to as ‘the consolidated entity’ or ‘the group’ in these financial statements). Control is
achieved where the Company:

» has power over the investee;

» is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

« has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the consolidated entity.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation. In the separate
financial statements of the Company, intra-group transactions (‘common control transactions’) are generally
accounted for by reference to the existing (consolidated) book value of the items. Where the transaction value of
common control transactions differ from their consolidated book value, the difference is recognised as a
contribution by or distribution to equity participants by the transacting entities.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Exploration and evaluation costs, including the costs of acquiring leases, are intangible assets capitalised as
exploration and evaluation assets on an area of interest basis. Costs incurred before the consolidated entity has
obtained the legal rights to explore an area are recognised in the income statement.

Exploration and evaluation assets are only recognised if the rights of the area of interest are current and either:-

(i)  the expenditures are expected to be recouped through successful development and exploitation of the area
of interest; or alternatively, by its sale; or

(i) activities in the area of interest have not, at the reporting date, reached a stage which permits a reasonable
assessment of the existence or otherwise of economically recoverable reserves, and active and significant

operations in, or in relation to, the area of interest are continuing.

Exploration and evaluation assets are initially measured at cost and include acquisition of rights to explore,
lease rental payments, seismic and other expenditure to provide legal tenure of the area of interest.

When an area of interest is abandoned or the directors decide that it is not commercial, any capitalised costs in
respect of that area are written off in the financial period the decision is made.

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment if:-
(i) sufficient data exists to determine technical feasibility and commercial viability, and
(ii) facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

For the purposes of impairment testing, exploration and evaluation assets are allocated to cash-generating units
to which the exploration activity relates. The cash generating unit shall not be larger than the area of interest.

Once the technical feasibility and commercial viability of the extraction of oil and gas reserves relating to a
prospect are demonstrable, exploration and evaluation assets attributable to that prospect are first tested for
impairment and then reclassified assets to oil and gas assets.

All other exploration and evaluation costs are expensed as incurred.
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BYRON ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

()

@)

(e)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Reserves

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Foreign currency exchange differences relating to the translation of AUD, being the functional currency of the
parent entity group into the presentational currency of US dollars for the consolidated entity are brought to account
by entries made directly to the foreign currency translation reserve.

Share Option Reserve

The share option reserve arises on the grant of share options to staff and other service providers to the Group.
Amounts are transferred out of the reserve and into issued capital when the options are exercised. Further
information about share based payments is made in Note 1(n).

Goods and services tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (“GST”), except:-

(i)  where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense; or

(ii)  for receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables.

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising
from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified
as operating cash flows.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the company’s and the consolidated entity’s non financial assets, except exploration and
evaluation expenditure, are reviewed each balance date or when there is an indication of an impairment loss, to
determine whether they are in excess of their recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

Calculation of the recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less cost to sell and value in use. In assessing the
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre tax discounted rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Reversals of impairment

Impairment losses are reversed when there is an indication that the impairment loss may no longer exist and there
has been a change in the estimated used to determine recoverable amounts.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying value does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of deprecation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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BYRON ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

)

@

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currency

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the consolidated entity’s subsidiaries are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the subsidiaries operate (“the functional currency”). The
functional currency of the Company is Australian dollars (A$) and the functional currency of the Company’s
overseas subsidiaries is United States dollars (US$).

The financial statements are presented in United States dollars. The consolidated entity believes the US dollar is
the best measure of performance for the Group because oil and gas, the consolidated entity’s dominant sources of
revenue are priced in US$ and the consolidated entity’s main operations are based in the USA with costs incurred
in USS.

Prior to consolidation, the results and financial position of each entity within the consolidated entity are translated
from the functional currency into the consolidated entity’s presentation currency as follows:-

« asset and liabilities of the non US$ denominated balance sheet are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that balance sheet;

+ income and expenses for the non US$ denominated income statement is translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case the income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions);

+ components of equity are translated at the historical rates; and

+ all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the date
of the transaction. Monetary asset and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated to the respective functional currency at the foreign exchange rate at that date. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary asset and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation,
the settlement of which is neither nor likely in the foreseeable future, are considered to form part of the net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised directly in equity in the foreign currency translation reserve.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings repayable in fixed currency denominations

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. As some of the
loans from shareholders are legally repayable in non functional or non United States currency denominations, any
unrealised foreign currency exchange gains and losses emanating from the recognition of the functional amounts
required to settle these future obligations are recognised in the profit and loss.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred, except for well
drilling insurance premium financing costs that are capitalised as part of the well expenditure.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Sale of 0il and gas
Hydrocarbon revenues are recognised when the actual physical quantity has been provided or allocated to a
purchaser pursuant to a contract. Revenue from oil and gas sales is measured at the fair value of the consideration

receivable.

Interest revenue

Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Page 24



BYRON ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

(h)

(®

@

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit or loss except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit/loss, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and deposits held at call with financial institutions. Cash equivalents are short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value and have a maturity of three months or less at the date of acquisition.

Financial assets
Investments are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs except for those financial assets classified as
at fair value through profit or loss which are initially measured at fair value.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost in the Company’s financial
statements.

Other financial assets are classified into the following specified categories if applicable: financial assets ‘at fair value
through profit or loss’ and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been impacted.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long
service leave when it is probable that settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably.

Liabilities recognised in respect of employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months, are measured at their
nominal values using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Liabilities recognised in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are
measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the consolidated entity in respect
of services provided by employees up to reporting date.

Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Property, plant and equipment (including software)

Buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are carried in
the statement of financial position at cost, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Construction in progress is
stated at cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the item. In
the event that settlement of all or part of the purchase consideration is deferred, cost is determined by discounting the
amounts payable in the future to their present value as at the date of acquisition.

Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment, including freehold buildings but excluding land.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis so as to write off the net cost or other revalued amount of each
asset over its expected useful life to its estimated residual value. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes
recognised on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:-

Buildings 40 years

Plant and equipment 2.5 to 10 years
Intangible assets - software 2.5 to 3 years
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the consolidated entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the consolidated entity will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to setile the present
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cashflows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cashflows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third

party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Share based payments

Equity settled share based payments with employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instrument at the grant date. Fair value is measured by use of an appropriate model. A share
based payment expense is recognised with a corresponding increase in equity at grant date where the share based
payment arrangements vest immediately.

Leased assets

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and benefits
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Payables
Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the consolidated entity becomes obliged to make

future payments resulting from the purchase of goods and services.

Receivables
Trade receivables and other receivables are recorded at amounts due, less any allowance for doubtful debts.

Issued capital
Issued and paid up capital is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received by the Company.

Transaction costs on the issue of equity instruments

Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments are recognised directly in equity as a reduction of the
proceeds of the equity instrument to which the costs relate. Transaction costs are costs that are incurred directly in
connection with the issue of those equity instruments and which would not have been incurred had those
instruments not been issued.

Financial liabilities

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments. The
fair value of current borrowings approximates the carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant
due to the very short term nature of the unsecured borrowing.
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2. Cost of sales
Production costs

Amortisation of oil and gas properties

3. Loss for the year

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging the following items of
expense

Professional and consulting costs
Insurance

Operating lease rental expense

Employee benefits expense

Other employee benefits
Share based payments (*also included in share base payments total below)

Defined contribution superannuation

Share based payments

Share options issued to directors, key management personnel and consultants

Stock exchange listing expense (in accordance with AASB 2)

4. Financial income and expenses

Financial Income

Interest income

Financial Expense

Interest expense paid to others
Interest expense accrued to a related party

Foreign exchange loss on $A denominated loan
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Consolidated

2014 2013
5. Income tax US$ USS
Income tax recognised in profit and loss - -
The prima facie income tax expense / (benefit) on pre tax accounting loss reconciles to the income tax expense /
(benefit) in the financial statements as follows:
Loss from continuing operations (7,305,087) (3,820.053)
Income tax benefit calculated at 30% (2,191,526) (1,146,016)
Expenditure not allowable for income tax purposes 3,994 1,592
Non tax deductible share based payments expense - 67,748
Non tax deductible loss on reverse asset acquisition - 238,106
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions (353,284) (88,480)
Non tax deductible foreign exchange adjustments (80,527) 107,494
Unused tax losses & tax offsets not recognised as deferred tax assets 2,621,343 819,556
Income tax expense / (benefit) on continuing operations - -
Deferred tax assets not recognised
Deferred tax assets not recognised comprises temporary differences attributable
to:
Australian tax losses 1,755,382 1,486,956
USA tax losses 14,638,415 7,492,443
Temporary differences (5,002,794) (252,119)
Total deferred tax assets not recognised 11,391,003 8,727,280

Byron Energy Limited and its 100% owned Australian subsidiary, Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd have not formed

a tax consolidated group as at 30 June 2014.

The potential deferred tax asset will only be obtained if:

(i) the consolidated entity derives future assessable income of a nature and amount sufficient to enable the benefits to

be realised, in the jurisdiction in which the losses were incurred;

(ii) the consolidated entity continues to comply with conditions for tax deductibility imposed by law; and

(iii) no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the ability of the consolidated entity to realise the tax benefits.

6. Earnings per share

The following reflects the income (loss) and share data used in calculating basic
and diluted earnings per share:

Net loss for the year (7,305,087) (3,820,053)
Basic loss per share (0.057) (0.035)
Diluted loss per share (0.057) (0.035)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 128,234,172 108,599,135
Weighted average number of diluted options outstanding - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of diluted

earnings per share 128,234,712 108,599,135
Anti-dilutive options on issue not used in the dilutive earnings per share

calculation 36,995,984 37,380,084

Options Outstanding

There is no dilution of shares due to options issued or outstanding as the potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive in
accordance with AASB 133, paragraph 41 and are therefore not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per

share
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Consolidated
2014 2013
US$S USS
7.  Trade and other receivables
GST receivable 14,388 76,546
Other receivables - ABN withholding credits - 290,316
14,388 366,862

No receivable amounts were past due or impaired at 30 June 2014 (2013: nil)
8.  Other assets
Current
Prepayments 75,936 83,944
Security deposits 265,276 117,366

341,212 201,310
Non-Current
Prepayments 8,191 15,966
9. Exploration and evaluation assets
Costs carried forward in respect of areas in the exploration and/or evaluation
phase at cost: 20,500,370 8,097,970
Reconciliation of movements. -
Carry amount at the beginning of the financial year 8,097,970 4,691,380
Additions at cost 17,510,685 3,525,508
Impairment expense (5,108,285) -
Divestment of working interests - (118,918)
Carrying amount at the end of the financial year 20,500,370 8,097,970

Ultimate recovery of deferred exploration and evaluation costs is dependent upon success in exploration and

evaluation or the full or partial sale (including farm-out) of the exploration interests.

The impairment charge covers ten leases, over six separate projects, relinquished during the year or subsequent to
balance date due to lease expiry, imminent expiry or the Group deciding, following a thorough review of seismic,

that the lease was no longer considered prospective.

10. Property, plant and equipment

Buildings at cost 13,760 13,549
Accumulated depreciation (2,769) (2,388)
10,991 11,161
Reconciliation of movements:-
Carry amount at the beginning of the financial year 11,161 12,635
Depreciation for year (335) (375)
Foreign currency translation movements 165 (1,099)
Carrying amount at the end of the financial year 10,991 11,161
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Consolidated
2014 2013
USS US$
10. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Plant and equipment at cost 125,739 113,135
Accumulated depreciation (66,524) (83,441)
59,215 29,694
Reconciliation of movements:-
Carry amount at the beginning of the financial year 29,694 31,864
Additions at cost 42,965 9,589
Depreciation for year (13,400) (11,267)
Foreign currency translation movements 44) (492)
Carrying amount at the end of the financial year 59,215 29,694
Total property, plant and equipment 70,206 40,855
11. Other intangible assets
Other intangible (software) assets at cost 49,742 49,255
Accumulated amortisation (47,034) (39,123)
2,708 10,132
Reconciliation of movements:-
Carry amount at the beginning of the financial year 10,132 21,129
Additions at cost 238 475
Amortisation for year (7,634) (10,689)
Foreign currency translation movements (28) (783)
Carrying amount at the end of the financial year 2,708 10,132
12. Trade and other payables
Current
Trade payables 128,920 37,718
Accrued interest payable to a related party 2,323 -
Other payables and accrued expenses 4,940,024 406,245
5,071,267 443,963
Terms and conditions relating to the above financial instruments:
@) trade creditors are non-interest bearing and are usually settled on 30 day terms
(ii) other operating creditors are non-interest bearing and have an average term of 30 days
(iii) for the 2014 year only, the other payables total includes an interest bearing amount, see Note 29 (c)
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Consolidated
2014 2013
US$ US$
13. Provisions
Current
Accumulated employee entitlements 123,623 108,515
Non-current
Accumulated employee entitlements 40,090 31,517
14. Borrowings
Current unsecured
Convertible loan from a related party 942,000 -

On 18 June 2014 the Company secured short term funding by way of an unsecured convertible loan (“the Loan”) of
A$1,000,000.00 bearing interest at 7.5% per annum from Veruse Pty Ltd (“the Lender”), a company controlled by Mr
Douglas Battersby, a director of the Company.

The Loan is to be repaid by the Company on or before 31 December 2014 unless it is converted into shares of the
Company (“Shares”) before the Loan is due for repayment. The Lender has an option to convert the Loan to Shares by
30 September 2014, subject to shareholder approval. If the Lender does not exercise its option to convert the Loan
into Shares, the Company may then elect to repay the Loan through conversion of the Loan into Shares by 3 October
2014, subject to shareholder approval. In the event the Lender exercises its conversion option the conversion price is
the same price as the capital raising undertaken by the Company after 12 June 2014. In the event the Company
exercises its conversion option the conversion price is the 30-day volume weighted average price of the Company’s
shares, up to and inclusive of the day immediately prior to the date on which the Borrower conversion notice is given.

Subsequent to balance date, on 6 August 2104, the Company received a conversion notice form the Lender to convert
the Loan to shares in the Company, subject to shareholder approval, at $A0.65 per share, the same price as the issue
price under the placement completed on 26 June 2014.

On 8 September 2014 the Company’s shareholders, at an Extraordinary General Meeting approved the conversion of
the Loan into Shares.

This financial instrument is not measured at fair value in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2014. Due to the short term
nature of the Loan, the fair value of interest bearing liabilities is not materially different from the carrying value.

15. Issued capital

(a) Issued and paid up capital 56,124,868 49,970,304

Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the right to dividends

Changes to the then Corporations Law abolished the authorised capital and par value concept in relation to share
capital from 1 July 1998. Therefore, the Company does not have a limited amount of authorised capital and issued
shares do not have a par value.
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15. Issued capital (continued)

2014 2013

(b) Movement Number US$ Number USS
Fully paid ordinary shares
Balance at beginning of the financial year 127,969,847 49,970,304 33,610,562 33,855,590
Shares issued
- Shares issued upon the exercise of shares options at

@$A0.50 cents per share option 384,100 175,278 - -
- Shares issued under the June 2014 placement @$A0.65

cents per share 9,916,847 6,022,452 - -
- Elimination of existing shares in Byron Energy

(Australia) Pty Ltd - - (33,610,562) -
- Existing shares in Byron Energy Limited (formerly

Trojan Equity Limited) - - 7,788,687 -
- Issue of Byron Energy Limited shares on acquisition of

Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd - - 84,026,411  *3,017,649
- Shares issued under the Placement Offer - - 20,577,375 7,972,498
- Shares issued under the Entitlement Offer - - 15,577,374 6,035,298
- Equity raising costs - (43,166) - (910,731)
Balance at end of financial year 138,270,794 56,124,868 127,969,847 49,970,304
*measured by reference to the fair value of the accounting acquiree (Byron Energy Limited):
120,181,160 new ordinary shares were issued under a prospectus dated 2 April 2013 comprising:-
(i) Entitlement Offer - 15,577,374 shares issued to shareholders of Byron Energy Limited on the basis of 2 new

shares for every share held

(ii) Placement Offer - 20,577,375 shares issued to investors identified by directors
(iii) Acquisition Offer - 84,026,411 shares issued to Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd shareholders to acquire

Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd

(¢) Terms and conditions of contributed equity

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up of the Company, to
participate in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on
shares held. Ordinary shares entitle their holder to one vote, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the Company.

The issued capital of the Company comprises 138,270,794 ordinary shares (2013: 127,969,847) of which 118,820,276
shares (2013: 108,519,329) are quoted on the ASX and 19,450,518 ordinary shares are escrowed until 30 May 2015.

(d) Share options
Options over ordinary shares

At the end of the financial year, there were 36,995,984 (2013: 37,380,084) unissued ordinary shares in respect of
which the following options were outstanding:

Expiry date Number Securities Escrow period expiry ~ Exercise price
31 December 2016 23,308,901 Unlisted options Nil A$0.50

31 December 2016 13,687,083 Unlisted options 30 May 2015 A$0.50
Total 36,995,984

No options (2013: 37,380,084) were issued during the financial year. All the options are unlisted and 13,687,083 are
escrowed until 30 May 2015. During the financial year, 384,100 options were exercised and nil were exercised in
the 2013 financial year.
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Consolidated

2014 2013

US$ USS
16. Reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at beginning of financial year (150,974) 143,170
Currency translation movements for the year 4,877 (294,144)
Balance at end of financial year (146,097) (150,974)

The reserve arises out of the translation of A$, being the functional currency of the parent entity group into the
consolidated entity presentation currency of USS$.

Share option reserve

Balance at beginning of financial year 2,104,108 1,878,283
2,600,000 options issued were subject to shareholders’ approval B 225,825
Balance at end of financial year 2,104,108 2,104,108

The reserve arises on the grant of share options to directors, key management personnel and consultants as equity-
based payments.

17. Franking credits
There are no franking credits available for distribution (2013: nil).

18. Expenditure commitments

The Group has expenditure commitments at the end of the financial year for non cancellable operating lease office
rental payments, seismic reprocessing and the drilling of the SM 6 #1 BP02 bypass well. These obligations are not
provided for in the financial statements.

Consolidated
2014 2013
(a) Commitments for office lease rental payments US$ US$
Not longer than 1 year 145,337 144,893
Between 1 and 5 years 124,247 199,000
269,584 343,893
(b) Commitments for the seismic reprocessing expenditure
Not longer than 1 year 156,800 -
(¢) Commitments for the drilling of the SM 6 #1 BP02 bypass well expenditure
Not longer than 1 year 7,952,000 -

(d) Exploration lease expenditure commitments

The Group has no exploration lease commitments at the end of the financial year as the leasing arrangements
of the Gulf of Mexico blocks do not require firm work programme commitments.
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19. Reverse asset acquisition

On 24 May 2013, Byron Energy Limited acquired 100% of the issued capital of Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd.
When Byron Energy Limited (the legal parent) acquired Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd (the legal subsidiary), the
acquisition was accounted for using the principles of reverse asset acquisition accounting under AASB 3 Business
Combinations since the substance of the transaction is that the existing shareholders of Byron Energy (Australia) Pty
Ltd have effectively obtained control of Byron Energy Limited. Accordingly Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd is the
accounting acquirer, and Byron Energy Limited is the accounting acquiree.

Under the principles of reverse asset acquisition accounting, the consolidated financial report is issued under the
name of the legal parent (Byron Energy Limited) but are a continuation of the consolidated financial statements of
the legal subsidiary Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd and its controlled entities, with the assets and liabilities of the
legal subsidiaries being recognised and measured at their pre-combination carrying amounts rather than their fair
values. The assets and liabilities of the accounting acquiree Byron Energy Limited was measured at fair value at the
date of acquisition.

The basis of the merger was that Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd shareholders would receive 2.5 Byron Energy
Limited shares and 0.40 Byron Energy Limited unlisted options (exercisable at A$0.50 with expiry date of 31
December 2016) for every Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd share and option owned by them, resulting in the issue
of 84,026,411 shares and 13,444,235 options in Byron Energy Limited; and each Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd
option holder received 2.5 share options in Byron Energy Limited resulting in the issue of 11,812,500 share options.

The consolidated entity has recognised the fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities of Byron Energy Limited
based on the information available as at the date of acquisition as follows:

Recognised on

acquisition
US$
Cash and cash equivalents 1,953,736
Debtors 303,557
2,257,293
Creditors and accruals 33,329
33,329
Fair value of identifiable net assets 2,223,964
Deemed stock exchange listing expense under AASB 2 793,685
3,017,649

Cost of the combination:
Fair value of issued equity instruments of acquiree before business combination 3,017,649
3,017,649

The acquisition cost of the business is deemed to have been incurred by the legal subsidiary (the acquirer for
accounting purposes) in the form of equity instruments issued to owners of the legal parent (the acquiree for
accounting purposes). However, due to the fact that the fair value of the equity instruments of the legal subsidiary
(Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd) was not clearly evident at the date at which the control was passed, the
alternative method (per AASB 3, paragraph B20), where the cost of the business combination was determined as the
total fair value of all the issued equity instruments of the legal parent (Byron Energy Limited) immediately prior to
the business combination was used.

The acquisition cost incurred of US$793,685 was due to the actual fair value of issued equity instruments of the

acquiree at the date of the reverse asset acquisition being higher than the estimated fair value of identifiable net
assets.
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Consolidated
2014 2013
USS USS$
20. Cash flow reconciliation
{a) Reconciliation of loss from ordinary activities after tax to net cash
flows from operations
Loss for the year (7,305,087) (3,820,053)
Non cash flows in operating result:-
Depreciation, amortisation and property, plant and equipment written off 21,369 163,472
Impairment expense 5,108,285 -
Loss on divestment of oil and gas properties, net of related legal fees paid - 218,005
Equity settled share based payments - 225,825
Net foreign exchange loss 8,300 6,453
Deemed stock exchange listing expense under AASB 2 - 793,685
Foreign exchange differences arising on translation of the parent entity
group 2,361 21,725
(2,164,772) (2,390,888)
Movements in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in assets:-
Trade and other receivables 358,336 202,808
Other assets (130,772) 216,813
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:-
Trade and other payables 5,124 (446,840)
Provisions 21,492 46,584
Net cash used in operating activities (1,910,592) (2,371,523)
(b) Reconciliation of cash
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash and bank balances 7,232,585 14,989,226

(c¢) Financing facility

The Group had available finance facilities at balance date of $A2,000,000 (US$1,884,000). Of which, A$1,000,000
(US$942,000) has been drawn down as at 30 June 2014.

(d) Non-cash financing and investing activities

There were no non-cash financing or investing activities during the financial year.

21. Controlled entities

The following entities are controlled by Byron Energy Limited and they have been consolidated into the financial
statements for the consolidated entity:-

Percentage
Name Country of domicile Class of share beneficially owned
Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100%
Byron Energy Inc USA Ordinary 100%
Byron Energy LLC USA Ordinary 100%
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22. Foreign currency translation

The exchange rate utilised in the translation of the parent entity group Australia dollar figures to United States of
America dollars are as follow:-

2014 2013
Spot rate at 30 June 0.9420 0.9275
Average rate for year 0.9187 1.0271

23. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(a) One of the Group’s USA subsidiaries, Byron Energy Inc (“BE Inc”) is required to provide bonding or security
for the benefit of the USA regulatory authorities in relation to its obligations to pay lease rentals and royalties, the
plugging and abandonment of oil and gas wells and the removal of related facilities. Accordingly, BE Inc has surety
bonds issued through a surety company to secure those obligations for its operated interests. As of 30 June 2014,
BE Inc was contingently liable for its Gulf of Mexico operated block areas and interests of US$550,000 (2013:
US$400,000).

(b) Byron Energy (Australia) Pty Ltd has agreed to provide a guarantee of the obligations of BE Inc (the seller)
under the Purchase and Sale Agreement between Northstar Offshore Group, LLC (the buyer) entered into on 8
November 2012 in relation to the sale of BE Inc’s interest in Eugene Island 183/184 and other non operated
interests.

Consolidated
2014 2013
US$S US$
24. Share-based payments
The aggregate share-based payments paid as remuneration for the financial year are
set out below:
Details of share-based payments
Fair value of options granted to directors and key management personnel - 178,055
Fair value of options granted to consultants and others for services rendered - 47,770
Expense arising from share-based payments paid as remuneration 5 225,825

Director and key management personnel equity share options
Share-based payment options held at the end of the reporting year were as follows:
Exercise  Fair value at

Grantee Number Grant date Vesting date Expiry date price grant date
P Kallenberger 1,000,000 24 May 2013 24 May 2013 31 Dec 2016 $A0.50 A$0.0846
C Sands 450,000 24 May 2013 24 May 2013 31 Dec 2016 $A0.50 A$0.0846
N Filipovic 600,000 24 May 2013 24 May 2013 31 Dec 2016 $A0.50 A$0.0846

Weighted average remaining contractual life
The share options outstanding at the end of the financial year had a remaining contractual life of 916 days (2013: 1,281
days).

Movements in share-based payments options
No share options were issued, nor any exercised during the financial year and the total fair value of the share options
granted during the previous financial year was US$225,825. There are no Employee Share Option plans in place.

2014 2014 2013 2013
Number Exercise price Number Exercise price
Balance at beginning of year 2,600,000 -
Granted during the year - 2,600,000 A$0.50¢
Expired during the year - -
Exercised during the year - -
Balance at end of year 2,600,000 2,600,000
Exercisable at end of year 2,600,000 A$0.50c 2,600,000 A$0.50c
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25. Employee benefits and superannuation commitments

The consolidated entity contributes in accordance with the Australian Government superannuation guarantee
legislation.

Consolidated
2014 2013
US$ US$
26. Auditors’ remuneration
Amounts received or due and receivable by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Audit or review of the financial statements of the Group 45,751 39,697
Non audit services: Investigating accountants reports - 46,014
45,751 85,711
27. Key management personnel compensation
Total aggregate remuneration of directors and key management personnel
Post
Short term employee benefits employment Share-based
benefits payments
Short term
Salaries cash Other Service
and fees incentive  Benefits Agreements Superannuation Options Total
USS$ USS$ Us$ US$ USS$ US$ US$S
Year 2014 699,106 - 19,505 293,984 28,893 - 1,041,488
Year 2013 686,767 - 18,970 357,978 28,795 178,055 1,270,565

More detailed information on remuneration and retirement benefits of directors is disclosed in the Remuneration
Report.

28. Related party transactions

Loans from related parties

Consolidated
2014 2013
USS US$
Convertible Loan 942,000 -

Veruse Pty Ltd, a company controlled by Mr Douglas Battersby, a director of the Company, has provided a loan at a
fixed interest rate of 7.5% per annum. The loan is unsecured and can be converted to equity at either party’s option at
A$0.65 per ordinary share, subject to prior approval at a meeting of shareholders. Interest accrued and payable on
this loan as at 30 June 2014 was US$2,323.
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29. Financial instruments

The consolidated entity’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables
and trade, security deposits and other payables. The main risks the consolidated entity is exposed to through its financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.

This note presents information about the consolidated entity’s exposure to each of the above risks and processes for
measuring and managing the risks and the management of capital.

Consolidated
Categories of financial instruments 2014 2013
US$ US$
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7,232,585 14,989,226
Trade and other receivables 14,388 366,862
Security deposits 265,276 117,366
7,512,249 15,473,454
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 5,071,267 373,963
Unsecured loan from a related party 942,000 -
6,013,267 373,963

(a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders. The Group’s capital structure consists of; (i). equity comprising
issued capital, reserves and accumulated losses and (ii). borrowings from a related party.

During the 2014 financial year, no dividends were paid (2013: nil).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(b) Credit risk exposure

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means
of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited as the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses,
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
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Financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk management

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and if required, standby credit facilities
to meet commitments when they fall due. Management continuously monitors cash forecasts to manage liquidity

risk.

Liquidity, credit and interest risk tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial assets.

Weighted Less than 1 1to3 3 monthsto 1-5years
average month months 1 year
effective
Consolidated financial assets interest rate
% Uss Uss Uss Uss
2014
Non-interest bearing - 14,388 265,276 -
Variable interest rate instruments 0.64% 7,232,585 - - -
Fixed interest rate instruments - - - -
2013
Non-interest bearing - 366,862 117,366
Variable interest rate instruments 1.35% 14,989,226 - - -
Fixed interest rate instruments - - - -
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
Weighted Less than 1 1to3 3 monthsto 1-5years
average month months 1 year
effective
Consolidated financial liabilities interest rate
% uss uss$ Uss uss
2014
Non-interest bearing - 4,957,482 - - -
Variable interest rate instruments - - - - -
Fixed interest rate instruments 5.0% - 113,785
Convertible loan 7.5% - - *942,000 -
2013
Non-interest bearing - 373,963 - - -

Variable interest rate instruments - - - i .
Fixed interest rate instruments - - - B -

~
(<N
—

Fair values

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at cost less
any accumulated impairments in the financial statements approximates their fair values.

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:
(i) *the loan from a related party is unsecured and can be converted to equity at either party’s option at A$0.65
per ordinary share, subject to prior approval at a meeting of shareholders. This financial instrument is not
measured at fair value in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2014, due to the short-term nature of the current

borrowing, the carrying amount of the loan is assumed to approximate its fair value;

holdings in unlisted shares are measured at cost less any impairments. The directors consider that no other
measure could be used reliably; and

(i)

other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models.

(iii)
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Financial instruments (continued)
Interest rate risk management

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents with a floating interest rate. The Group is not currently engaged in any hedging or derivative
transactions to manage interest rate risk. This risk is managed through the use of cash flow forecasts supplemented
by sensitivity analysis.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had a financing facility of A$2,000,000, of which A$1,000,000 had been drawn
down at the end of the financial year. The interest rate payable of funds drawn down under this facility is fixed at
7.5% per annum.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

A sensitivity analysis have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at reporting date with the
stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting
period.

At reporting date, if interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s net loss would decrease by US$55,555 or increase by US$55,555 (2013: increase by
US$41,475 or decrease by US$41,475). This is mainly due to the Group’s exposure to variable interest rates on
cash and cash equivalents.

Foreign currency risk management
The Group incurs costs in US dollars and Australian dollars.
The Group holds the majority of liquid funds in US dollars.

Fluctuations in the Australian dollar / US dollar exchange rate can impact the performance of the consolidated
entity. The consolidated entity is not currently engaged in any hedging or derivative transactions to manage
foreign currency risk. As cash inflows and cash outflows are predominately denominated in US dollars, with the
exception of Australian dollar denominated equity funding, surplus funds are primarily held in US dollars.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of the reporting period are as follows.

Monetary Assets Monetary Liabilities
2014 2013 2014 2013
Consolidated $ $ $ $
USA currency denominated 6,626,565 12,850,134 4,939,681 206,280
Australian currency denominated 940,217 2,828,377 1,139,687 180,790

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the US$ against the A$.

A positive number below indicates an increase in profit or equity where the US$ dollar strengthens 10% against the
relevant currency. For a 10% weakening of the US$ dollar against the relevant currency, there would be a
comparable negative impact on the profit or equity. The impact is mainly due to the Australian group of holding
companies incurring and settling expenses and outgoings in Australian dollars.

Australian dollar impact on loss

Consolidated 2014 2013
US$ US$
Equity 169,264 173,476
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31.

Segment information

The Group determines operating segments based on the information that is internally provided to the
executive management team. Using this ‘management approach’ segment information is on the same basis
as information used for internal reporting purposes. As such, there are no significant classes of business,
either singularly or in aggregate. The Group therefore operates within one business segment of oil and gas
exploration and development; and one geographical segment, the United States of America.

The geographical locations of the Group’s non-current assets are United States of America US$20,544,241
(2013: US$ 8,124,030) and Australia US$37,234 (2013: US$40,893).

Parent entity information

2014 2013
Financial position US$S US$
Assets
Current assets 8,363,751 1,578,012
Non-current assets 46,433,890 46,434,019
Total assets 54,797,641 48,012,031
Liabilities
Current liabilities 1,015,750 47,759
Non-current liabilities - -
Total liabilities 1,015,750 47,759
Net assets 53,781,891 47,964,272
Equity
Issued capital 55,461,125 49,306,560
Accumulated losses (1,269,347) (855,538)
Reserves (409,887) (486,750)
Total Equity 53,781,891 47,964,272
Financial performance
Profit (loss) for the year (413,809) (382,739)
Other comprehensive income 76,863 (685,118)
Total comprehensive income for the financial year (336,946) (1,067,857)

Expenditure commitments
The parent entity has no expenditure commitments at the end of the 2014 financial year (2013: nil).
Guarantees

There were no guarantees entered into during the year by the parent entity in relation to the debts of it’s
subsidiaries.

Contingent liabilities

The parent entity had no contingent liabilities at 30 June 2014 (2013: nil).
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32. Subsequent events

Subsequent to the end of the financial year the following has occurred:-

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

the drilling of Byron Energy SM 6 #1 well and the two related bypass wells, Byron Energy SM 6 #1 BP0OI and
Byron Energy SM 6 #1 BP02 was completed in July 2014 with the rig released on 31 July 2014;

electric logs run in the Byron Energy SM 6 #1 BP02 indicated two separate net hydrocarbon pay zones in the F
Sands;

due to serious problems with the drilling rig’s top drive, drilling operations of the Byron Energy SM 6 #1 BP02
bypass well were suspended, in late July 2014, leaving the well in a condition that allows completion in the F
Sands at a future date;

completion of a share placement for the issue of 2,876,923 fully paid ordinary shares at an issue price of $A0.65
per share raising a total of A$1,870,000;

execution of an unsecured loan facility with four of the Company’s directors and several others, equivalent to
US$2,544,000 (comprising A$1,400,000 and US$1,225,000) repayable in cash by 1 July 2015;

at an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders held on 8 September 2014, the shareholders approved:

e the conversion of $A 2.0 million convertible loan from three directors to the Company, half of which was
drawn-down during the financial year and the balance subsequent to year end, into 3,076,923 ordinary
shares in the Company at A$0.65 per share, the same price as the issue price under the share placement
completed on 26 June 2014;

e the issue of 154,000 fully paid ordinary shares in the Company, at an issue price of A$0.65 per share to
Clapsy Pty Ltd, a company controlled by Mr Paul Young, a director of the Company;

e the placement of (a) 9,916,847 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares at A$0.65 per shares completed on 26 June
2014, and (b) the placement of 2,876,923 fully paid ordinary shares at A$0.65 per share, completed on 11
July 2014;

e the issue, under Listing Rule 7.1, of up to 15,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares within 3 months of the date
of approval, without using up any of the 15% capacity; and

released an independent reserves and prospective resources estimate, as at 30 June 2014, prepared by Collarini
and Associates in accordance with the reporting requirements of the Petroleum Resources Management System
(SPE-PRMS) as required by ASX Listing Rule 5 — Additional Reporting on Mining and Oil & Gas Production
and Exploration Activities.

Except for the above, there have not been any other matters or circumstances occurring subsequent to the end of the
financial year that have significantly affected, or may significantly affect the operations of the Group, the results of
those operations, or the state of affairs of the company in future financial period.

Page 43



BYRON ENERGY LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

The directors of Byron Energy Limited declare that in the opinion of the directors:

a) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable;

b) the attached financial statements are in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
stated in note 1 to the financial statements;

c) the attached financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including compliance with accounting standards and giving a true and fair view of the financial position
and performance of the consolidated entity; and

d) the directors have been given the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors of Byron Energy Limited made pursuant to section 295(5) of
the Corporations Act 2001.

On behalf of the directors

Chairman

26 September 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Byron Energy Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Byron Energy Limited, which comprises the statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2014, the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date, notes comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration of
the consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to
time during the financial year as set out on pages 13 to 44.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also
state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that
consolidated financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We have conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant
ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



Auditor’s Independence Declaration

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.
We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to
the directors of Byron Energy Limited would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this
auditor’s report.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial report of Byron Energy Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

(a) giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2014
and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the and the Corporations Regulations 2001.
Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 7 to 11 of the directors’ report for the year ended 30
June 2014. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards.

Opinion

In our opinion the Remuneration Report of Byron Energy Limited for the year ended 30 June 2014, complies
with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Emphasis of matter

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial report, which indicates that the
consolidated entity incurred a net loss of $7,305,087 and had negative cash flows from operating activities of
$1,910,592 for the year ended 30 June 2014. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1,
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s and
Consolidated Entity’s ability to continue as going concerns and therefore, the Company and Consolidated Entity
may be unable to realise their assets and discharge their liabilities in the normal course of business.

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Qg %y —
Craig B '.
Partner
Chartered Accountants

Melbourne, 26 September 2014

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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